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Tamara R. Ross

From: Bush, Jodi <jodi_bush@fws.gov>

Sent: Tuesday, May 16, 2023 9:03 AM

To: Tamara R. Ross

Cc: Zerrenner, Adam; Martin, Jacob

Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] First Agency Sufficiency Review - Missoula Loft Homes on Mary Jane Major 

Subdivision

External Email: Treat links and attachments with caution. 

Tamara.  I no longer work for the USFWS IN Montana.  Please revise your mailing list to remove my name and include 

Adam Zerrenner and Jacob Martin, cc’d here.  Thank you.  JB 

 

Jodi L. Bush 

Deputy Assistant Regional Director 

U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service,  

Region 1 – Pacific Northwest 

911 NE 11th Ave Portland, OR 97232 

Currently Teleworking at (503) 347-9902 Mobile 

pronouns: she/her/hers 

 

Please Note:  I am sending this email at a time that works well for me.  I respect your boundaries and don’t expect a response outside 

of YOUR working hours.   
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Tamara R. Ross

From: Jordan Johnson <jjohnson@blackfoot.com>

Sent: Wednesday, May 17, 2023 11:14 AM

To: Tamara R. Ross

Cc: Joe M. Dehnert; BramletteA@ci.missoula.mt.us

Subject: RE:   First Agency Sufficiency Review (UPDATED)- Missoula Loft Homes on Mary Jane Major 

Subdivision

External Email: Treat links and attachments with caution. 

Blackfoot has no comments at this time. 

 

Thank you, 

 

Jordan Johnson 

OSP Project Engineer 

Blackfoot Communications  

M: 406-499-1024 
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Tamara R. Ross

From: Ben Schmidt <bschmidt@missoulacounty.us>

Sent: Wednesday, May 17, 2023 11:44 AM

To: Tamara R. Ross

Subject: RE:   First Agency Sufficiency Review (UPDATED)- Missoula Loft Homes on Mary Jane Major 

Subdivision

External Email: Treat links and attachments with caution. 

Tamara, 

 

The Air Program at the Missoula City-County Health Departments supports the inclusion of the radon and wood burning 

devices comments in the submitted plans, points 21 and 18 in the covenants. 

 

Sincerely, 

Benjamin Schmidt, MS, RS, QEP 

MCCHD - Air Quality Specialist 

301 W Alder ST 

Missoula, MT  59802 

406-258-3369 or bschmidt@missoulacounty.us 
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Tamara R. Ross

From: Richards, Kristi <KrisRichards@mt.gov>

Sent: Wednesday, May 17, 2023 6:59 AM

To: Tamara R. Ross

Subject: RE: First Agency Sufficiency Review - Missoula Loft Homes on Mary Jane Major Subdivision

External Email: Treat links and attachments with caution. 

Good morning, 

The Department of Revenue has no comment at this time. 

 

Thank you, 

 

 

Kristi Richards 

Area Manager 
Montana Department of Revenue  
KrisRichards@mt.gov 
406-329-1417 

MTRevenue.gov  
 

     

 
This message is intended only for the use of the individual or entity to which it is addressed and may contain information 

that is privileged and confidential. If the reader of this message is not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that 

dissemination, distribution or forwarding of this communication is prohibited. If you receive this communication in error, 

please notify the sender immediately and delete this message from any device/media where it is stored.  
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Tamara R. Ross

From: Lilleberg, Derek <Derek.Lilleberg@p66.com>

Sent: Tuesday, May 16, 2023 9:35 AM

To: Tamara R. Ross

Subject: RE: First Agency Sufficiency Review - Missoula Loft Homes on Mary Jane Major Subdivision

External Email: Treat links and attachments with caution. 

Phillips 66/Yellowstone Pipe Line Company have no assets in this project area. 

 

Thank you, 

 

 
Derek Lilleberg 
RES Agent, Real Estate Transactions  

O: 406-255-5708 | M: 406-855-0116  
2626 Lillian Avenue | Billings, MT 59101 
phillips66.com  

 
 
The information in this electronic message is privileged and confidential and is intended solely for the use of the individual(s) and/or entity named above, 
and any unauthorized disclosure, copying, distribution or taking of any action in reliance upon on the contents of these electronically transmitted 
materials is strictly prohibited.  If you are not the intended recipient, please notify the sender immediately and destroy this message and any copies. 

 

Dear Agent: The City of Missoula Development Services Division has identified you as being an agency that may have important comments to make about the proposed City Major Subdivision, Missoula Lofts on Mary Jane Subdivision. Your comments  

ZjQcmQRYFpfptBannerStart 
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Tamara R. Ross

From: Travis Ross <tross@missoulacounty.us>

Sent: Monday, May 22, 2023 11:33 AM

To: Tamara R. Ross; Joe M. Dehnert

Cc: waterquality; Alex Eidam; Elena Evans

Subject: RE:   First Agency Sufficiency Review (UPDATED)- Missoula Loft Homes on Mary Jane Major 

Subdivision

External Email: Treat links and attachments with caution. 

Tamara and Joe - The Missoula Valley Water Quality District has no particular comment regarding this proposed 

subdivision. Thanks, 

 

 

Travis Ross|he, him, his| 

Water Quality Specialist 

Missoula Valley Water Quality District 

Missoula City-County Health Dept 

406.258.4964 

 

 

 

From: waterquality <waterquality@missoulacounty.us>  

Sent: Tuesday, May 16, 2023 12:22 PM 

To: Travis Ross <tross@missoulacounty.us> 

Subject: FW: First Agency Sufficiency Review (UPDATED)- Missoula Loft Homes on Mary Jane Major Subdivision 

 

 

 

Emily Larson 
Program Support Specialist 

Missoula Valley Water Quality District 

406.258.4890 
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Tamara R. Ross

From: Knudsen Gerhard <gmk@bresnan.net>

Sent: Wednesday, May 24, 2023 9:05 AM

To: Tamara R. Ross; Joe M. Dehnert

Cc: Alex Bramlette; Brown Jim

Subject: Missoula Loft Homes Major Subdivision - Five Valleys Audubon Review Comment

External Email: Treat links and attachments with caution. 

The Missoula Loft Homes Subdivision is planned for an area that, at one time, had value as 
grassland wildlife habitat.  However, since the development is in an area experiencing increasing 
residential growth, wildlife habitat values of the site have diminished substantially. That being the 
case, we do not see where mitigating action would be helpful or reduce impacts. 
  
Thank you for the opportunity to offer comment during the first sufficiency review of the proposed 
Missoula Loft Homes Subdivision. 
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Tamara R. Ross

From: Tamara R. Ross

Sent: Monday, June 5, 2023 12:22 PM

To: 'Cozad, Desiree'; Joe M. Dehnert

Cc: BramletteA@ci.missoula.mt.us

Subject: RE: Missoula Loft Homes on Mary Jane Subdivision

Received, thank you Desiree! 

 

Tamara Ross 
IMEG | Civil Designer / Planning Technician  

 

1817 South Ave West | Suite A | Missoula, MT 59801  

(406) 272-0253 

Tamara.R.Ross@imegcorp.com 

website | vCard | map | regional news 
 

Learn more about us and the IMEG story!  

This email may contain confidential and/or private information. If you received this email in error please delete and notify sender.  

 

From: Cozad, Desiree <Desiree.Cozad@mt.gov>  

Sent: Wednesday, May 31, 2023 10:40 AM 

To: Tamara R. Ross <Tamara.R.Ross@imegcorp.com>; Joe M. Dehnert <Joseph.M.Dehnert@imegcorp.com> 

Cc: BramletteA@ci.missoula.mt.us 

Subject: Re: Missoula Loft Homes on Mary Jane Subdivision 

 

External Email: Treat links and attachments with caution. 

Hello,  

 

Attached is our comment letter for the Missoula Loft Homes on Mary Jane Subdivision.  

 

Thank you 

 

Desiree Cozad 

Region 2 Admin Support 

Montana Fish, Wildlife & Parks 

 

3201 Spurgin Rd 

Missoula, MT 59804 

O: (406) 542-5525 

C: (406) 546-4216 

Montana FWP  

 

 
 









1

Tamara R. Ross

From: Tamara R. Ross

Sent: Monday, June 5, 2023 12:22 PM

To: Dan Neuman; Joe M. Dehnert

Cc: Brian Ellestad; Lynn Fagan; BramletteA@ci.missoula.mt.us

Subject: RE: Missoula Loft Homes Sufficiency Review

Received, thank you Dan! 

 
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

 

From: Dan Neuman <dneuman@flymissoula.com>  

Sent: Thursday, June 1, 2023 3:19 PM 

To: Joe M. Dehnert <Joseph.M.Dehnert@imegcorp.com> 

Cc: Brian Ellestad <brian.ellestad@flymissoula.com>; Lynn Fagan <lfagan@flymissoula.com>; Tamara R. Ross 

<Tamara.R.Ross@imegcorp.com>; BramletteA@ci.missoula.mt.us 

Subject: Missoula Loft Homes Sufficiency Review 

 

External Email: Treat links and attachments with caution. 
Hi Joseph, 

 

Please see the a5ached.  Let me know if you have any ques7ons. 

 

Thanks, 

 

Dan F. Neuman 

 

 

 

 

Dan F. Neuman 
Manager of Business Development 

Missoula Montana Airport 

C – 406.370.3393 │ P – 406.532.8741 

www.flymissoula.com 

   
 

 



 

 

 
 

 June 5, 2023 
 
 
Joe Dehnert, IMEG Corp. 
Land Use Planner 
1817 South Ave West, Suite A 
Missoula, MT 59801 
joseph.m.dehnert@imegcorp.com 
 

Re: Missoula Loft Homes on Mary Jane 
 
Dear Mr. Dehnert, 
 
Please accept this letter as the Missoula County Airport Authority’s (“the Airport”) comments to the 
Missoula Loft Homes on Mary Jane Proposed Subdivision; Tract 2 and 5 of Certificate of Survey 6817 
being located in the northwest one-quarter (NW1/4) of Section 18, Township 13 North, Range 19 West, 
Principal Meridian Montana, Missoula County, Montana. 
 
A portion of the proposed subdivision may be within the Airport Influence Area, as adopted by Missoula 
County pursuant to Resolution No. 78-96 and amended by Resolution No. 78-187 dated July 5, 1978 and 
December 6, 1978, respectively, and recorded in Book 121 of Micro Records, page 1319 (Resolution 78-
96) and Book 135 of Micro Records, page 474 (Amendment by Resolution 78-187).  These Resolutions 
provide restrictions on the height of objects on the property pursuant to FAA Part 77 Regulations, as 
well as restrictions on the use of equipment which would create an unreasonable interference with 
radio communications or electronic navigational aids in use at the airport.  
 
The Airport has no objection to the subdivision, so long as an avigation easement is executed between 
the developer and the Airport, and all potential buyers of the property are given an appropriate written 
disclosure that the property is located within the Airport Influence Area. A sample avigation easement 
and disclosure are attached. 
 
Please continue to keep us informed on this project as it moves through the review process.  
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Dan F. Neuman, Manager Business Development 
Missoula County Airport Authority 
dneuman@flymissoula.com 
 
Cc: Brian Ellestad (bellestad@flymissoula.com) , Lynn Fagan (lfagan@flymissoula.com), Tamara R. Ross 
(Tamara.R.Ross@imegcorp.com), Alex Bramlette (BramletteA@ci.missoula.mt.us) 
 
Enclosure(s): Sample Avigation Easement, Avigation Easement Disclosure 

mailto:joseph.m.dehnert@imegcorp.com
mailto:dneuman@flymissoula.com
mailto:bellestad@flymissoula.com
mailto:lfagan@flymissoula.com
mailto:Tamara.R.Ross@imegcorp.com
mailto:BramletteA@ci.missoula.mt.us


EXHIBIT A TO  
________________________________ 
SUBDIVISION AVIGATION EASEMENT 

 
Airport Influence Area disclosure for declaration of covenants, restrictions and 
conditions for ___________________: 
 
Airport Influence Area. A portion of the Real Property is located within the Missoula County 
Airport Influence Area and is subject to the requirements of the Missoula County Airport 
Influence Area Resolutions.  The resolutions that created the Airport Influence Area were 
adopted by the Board of County Commissioners for Missoula County pursuant to Resolution No. 
78-96 and amended by Resolution No. 78-187 dated July 5, 1978 and December 6, 1978, 
respectively, and recorded in Book 121 of Micro Records, page 1319 (Resolution 78-96) and 
Book 135 of Micro Records, page 474 (Amendment by Resolution 78-187).  A portion of the real 
property is further subject to an Avigation Easement entered between the Declarant and the 
Missoula County Airport Authority, dated the _____ day of ______, 20__ and recorded on the 
records of the Missoula County Clerk and Recorder in Book _____, Micro Records at Page 
____, all of which limit and restrict the rights of the Owners now and into the future.  The 
limitations and restrictions set out in these documents should be reviewed carefully prior to 
purchase by all prospective purchasers of Lots.   Prospective purchasers and Owners are 
advised that the operations at the airport may change and/or expand in the future, thereby 
changing and/or expanding the impacts felt on the portion of the Real Property subject to the 
Avigation Easement.  Prospective purchasers and Owners are advised and should consider 
before purchasing a Lot that noise, vibration, dust, fumes, smoke, vapor and other effects from 
aircraft may occur, which may cause inconvenience or annoyance that may vary from Lot to Lot 
and that may affect people in different ways or extent.  Federal funding for soundproofing, other 
mitigation of these impacts, or for acquisition of these properties is not available at present, nor 
in the future.  The provisions of paragraph 3 of the above-described Avigation Easement 
executed by the Owner/Declarant provides for a full waiver and release by Owner/Declarant of 
any right or cause of action which it now has or may have in the future against the Missoula 
County Airport Authority, its successors and assigns, on account of or arising out of such noise, 
vibration, dust, fumes, smoke, vapor or other effects heretofore or hereafter caused by the 
operation of aircraft in said air space and/or by operations at the Missoula County Airport.  The 
acquisition of a Lot or Lots in ___________Subdivision subject to the Avigation Easement and 
the aforementioned Resolutions by a prospective purchaser shall constitute an express 
acknowledgment and agreement by such prospective purchaser on behalf of prospective 
purchaser, its heirs, personal representatives, successors and assigns, that prospective 
purchaser fully waives and releases Owner/Declarant, ____________________, and its 
successors and assigns, as well as the Missoula County Airport Authority and its successors 
and assigns, of any right or cause of action which prospective purchaser now has or may have 
in the future as the purchaser and occupant of _____________against [owner], and/or the 
Missoula County Airport Authority and their respective successors and assigns, on account of or 
arising out of such noise, vibration, dust, fumes, smoke, vapor or other effects heretofore or 
hereafter caused by the operation of aircraft in the air space and/or by the operations at the 
Missoula County Airport within the Missoula County Airport Influence Area.  This paragraph may 
not be revised without the written consent of the Missoula County Airport Authority, which 
consent shall not be unreasonably withheld. 
 
 
 



 
AVIGATION EASEMENT    
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After recording return to: 
Missoula County Airport Authority 
5225 Highway 10 West  
Missoula, MT 59808 

AVIGATION EASEMENT 

 
________________________________, (“Grantor”), is the owner of _____________________ 
________________________________________________________________________ in 
Missoula County, Montana (“Property” or “Grantor’s Property”), the highest ground elevation of 
which is __________________feet above mean sea level, which real property is within the 
adopted Airport Influence Area, and hereby grants unto the MISSOULA COUNTY AIRPORT 
AUTHORITY (“Authority”), 5225 Highway 10 West, Missoula, Montana 59808-9399 the 
following easement: 
 
1. An easement and right-of-way for the use and benefit of the public, for the free and 

unobstructed passage of aircraft in, through, and across all of the airspace above 
Grantor’s property at or above an elevation of ____________ feet mean sea level.  If 
federal and/or state laws or regulations place lower height restrictions on the property, 
then Grantor must comply with the more stringent federal or state requirements.  

 
2. The permanent right of flight for the passage of aircraft for the use and benefit of the 

public in the airspace above Grantor’s property, together with the continuing right to 
cause in said airspace such noise, vibration, dust, fumes, smoke, vapor, and other 
effects as may be inherent for navigation of or flight in air, using said airspace, or landing 
at, taking off from, or operating on Johnson Bell Field. 

 
3. The full waiver and release by Grantor of any right or cause of action which it now has or 

may have in the future against the Authority, its successors and assigns, on account of 
or arising out of such noise, vibration, dust, fumes, smoke, vapor, and other effects 
heretofore and hereafter caused by the operation of aircraft in said airspace and/or by 
any operations at the airport. 

 
4. The covenant and agreement that from and after the execution of this document, the 

Grantor shall not erect any structure or object or allow any tree or other vegetation to a 



 
AVIGATION EASEMENT    
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exceed the height of _____________________ feet mean sea level or encroach upon or 
extend in any way into this easement and right-of-way.  If federal and/or state laws or 
regulations place lower height restrictions on the property, then Grantor must comply 
with the more stringent federal or state requirements in structures to be built.  

 
5. The continuing right of the Authority to clear and keep clear Grantor’s property of any 

and all obstructions that encroach upon or extend in any way into this easement and 
right-of-way above an elevation of ___________________ feet mean sea level, and for 
such purpose to enter upon the surface of Grantor’s property and cut and remove any 
tree or other vegetation, or to remove, raze, or destroy those portions of buildings or 
other structures that would infringe upon or extend into said elevation.  Such right 
includes the right of ingress to and egress from, and passage over Grantor’s property for 
the purpose of effecting and maintaining such clearances as aforesaid. 

 
6. The covenant and agreement that from and after the execution of this document, 

Grantor shall not put its property to any of the following uses which would: 
 

A. Create an unreasonable interference with (1) radio communication for aircraft 
using the airport; and (2) electronic navigational aids or devices and instrument 
landing systems.  Examples of equipment that can cause such interference are 
generators, motors, and artificial lighting devices which create excessive static. 

 
B. Create a hazard to flying by materially reducing visibility, such as incinerators, 

rock crushers, smelters, chemical manufacturing, and similar uses. 
 

C. Make it difficult for fliers to distinguish between airport or other navigational lights 
or markers and other lights; or cause glare to fliers using the airport, such as any 
arrangement and use of lights which resemble a layout or color of a landing area, 
or search lights or flash-type advertising signs. 

 
D. Result in any business, structure, tree, occupation or use which is dangerous or 

hazardous to the safety of aircraft using Johnson Bell Field or to property or 
persons using Johnson Bell Field or flying in the vicinity thereof.  Towers, poles, 
smokestacks, advertising balloons, above-ground bulk storage of petroleum 
products, and fireworks manufacturing are examples of potentially dangerous 
uses, structures, and activities. 

 
E. Result in a land use or activity that is not ordinarily considered to be compatible 

with aircraft operations because of aircraft noise.  Such land uses and activities 
include, but shall not be limited to, all types of schools, hospitals, religious 
facilities, and other uses whereby the aircraft noise could interfere with speech, 
sleep, or the uses normally associated with structures.  In this regard, residential 
development in areas not exceeding 64 db sound levels need to comply with the 
IBC Construction Standards or the construction standards applied by Missoula 
County or the governmental entity having jurisdiction of the area at the time of 
construction.  Residential development in areas greater than 64db noise level 
must be sound attenuated as required by FAA Standards. 
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The parties agree to and acknowledge the following: 
 

(1) Subject to the restrictions and limitations set forth in this Avigation 
Easement, and so long as the development meets the requirements of 
this easement, the Authority will not oppose or attempt to prevent 
commercial development on Grantor’s Property. 

 
 (2) Grantor acknowledges receipt of a copy of the most recent Missoula 

International Airport noise contour map dated 2005 (DNL Noise Contours: 
2005 from the Missoula International Airport, FAR Part 150 Study) 
showing the various aircraft noise overlay zones.     

 
(3) The Airport Authority makes no representations about the present or 

future impact of airport operations on present or future uses of Grantor’s 
Property. 

 
(4) Grantor shall comply with the restrictions on airport hazards as set forth in 

Montana Code Annotated, Title 67, Chapter 7, as well as any federal 
and/or state laws or regulations that place height and/or hazard 
restrictions on Grantor’s Property. 

  
These covenants, conditions, and restrictions shall run with the land and shall be binding upon 
the successors and assigns of all the parties signing below. 
 
 
 

By: _________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF MONTANA ) 

: ss 
County of Missoula  ) 
 

This instrument was acknowledged before me this ____ day of ________, 20__ by  
_____________________________________________, known to me to be the ___________ 
of ___________________________________. 

 
 

______________________________________ 
Print Name: ____________________________ 
NOTARY PUBLIC FOR THE STATE OF MONTANA 
Residing at ____________________________  
My Commission expires: _________________  
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ACCEPTED BY: 
 

MISSOULA COUNTY AIRPORT AUTHORITY 
 
 

By: ___________________________________ 
       Cris Jensen, Airport Director  

 
 
STATE OF MONTANA ) 

:  ss. 
County of Missoula  ) 
 

This instrument was acknowledged before me this ____ day of ______________, 20__ 
by Cris Jensen, known to me to be the Airport Director of MISSOULA COUNTY AIRPORT 
AUTHORITY. 
 
 

______________________________________ 
Print Name: ____________________________ 
NOTARY PUBLIC FOR THE STATE OF MONTANA 
Residing at Missoula, Montana 
My Commission expires: _________________ 
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Tamara R. Ross

From: Dan Stone <dstone@mountainline.com>

Sent: Tuesday, June 6, 2023 4:33 PM

To: Tamara R. Ross

Cc: Alex Bramlette; Joe M. Dehnert; Colin Woodrow; Corey Aldridge

Subject: Re:   First Agency Sufficiency Review (UPDATED)- Missoula Loft Homes on Mary Jane Major 

Subdivision

External Email: Treat links and attachments with caution. 

Hi Tamara, 

 

I just realized I missed the deadline for comments on this project, so apologies for the late response on this. If 

it's not too late to add to the first sufficiency review comments, can you please include a recommendation 

from Mountain Line for the developer to petition into the Missoula Urban Transportation District as a 

condition of subdivision approval? 

 

Thank you, 

 

Dan Stone 
Transit Planner 
He/Him 
Mountain Line (MUTD) 
406.215.2457 

dstone@mountainline.com 

To help protect you r priv acy, Microsoft Office prevented automatic download of this picture from the Internet.
Mountain Line

 

To help protect you r priv acy, Microsoft Office prevented automatic download of this picture from the Internet.
APTA 2021 Transit System Of The Year

 

Benefits Us All. 
mountainline.com 

    

 

 


